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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting ("TAGM") of Karam Ceramics
Limited (the 'Company') will be held on Saturday November 26, 2022, at 3.00 P.M, at the
Registered Office of the Company A-31,S. M.C.H.S., Karachi and / or through video-link facility
to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To Confirm the minutes of the 42nd Annual General Meeting held on 27th October 2021

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2022, together with the reports Directors and Auditors thereon.

3. To appoint External Auditor of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023 and fix
their remuneration. The present auditors M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered
Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To elect seven (7) Directors for the period of three years in accordance with the Companies
Act 2017. The Directors have fixed the number of elected Directors as seven (7). The name
of retiring Directors are as follows:

Mrs. Suraiya Nasir

Mr. Mazhar Ali Nasir

Mr . Azhar Ali Nasir

Mr. Azfar Ali Nasir

Lt. General (Rtd) Tariq Waseem Ghazi
Mr. Alireza M. Alladin

Mr. Shuja Ahmed Alvi

NG R ®N =

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Karachi

November 5, 2022. By Order of the Board
Manzoor Ali Natha
Company Secretary

Notes :

1. The Share transfer book of the company will be closed from November 19, 2022 to November
26, 2022 (both days inclusive). The transfers received at Company's Share Registrar namely
M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd. Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A Phase VII
Karachi-75500 by close of business on November 18, 2022. Members whose names are
appearing in the Register of Members at the close of business on November 18, 2022 are
entitled to attend, participate and vote of the Meeting,.

2. Inaccordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2017, the Annual Report containing
the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 is available on
the Company's website.
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3. Inlight of the continuing spread of Covid 19 and to protect the well being of the shareholders,

the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP"), in terms of its circular No.
6 of 2021, directed the listed companies to hold their meeting, virtually in addition to the
requirements to ensure that all participants, including shareholders, can now participate
in the AGM proceeding through video-link as well.

4. In order to attend the Meeting through video-link facility, the Members are requested to

get themselves registered not later than 72 hours before the Meeting by providing the
following information to the contact details stated at bottom of this Note 4: in case of the
information sent through courier, the same should be received at Company's office by
November 19, 2022:.

Name of CNIC No. Folio No. Cell No. Email Address
Shareholder

Copy of CNIC will be required with above mentioned information. The video-link for the
meeting will be sent to the Members on their provided email address enabling them to
attend meeting on the given date and time. The login facility will remain open from 2.30p.m
till the end of meeting. In case of any suggestions or comments for the agenda items, the
Members may send the same at the email address mentioned below:

Karam Ceramics Limited
A-31, Sindhi Muslim Cooperative Housing Society, Karachi-75400
Telephone: +92 21 34555512-13

Email: manzoorali.karam@gmail.com

5. Individual Members who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC to the Company

are once again requested to send a copy of their valid CNIC at the earliest directly to the
office of Share Registrar of the Company, Corporate entities are requested to provide their
National Tax Number (NTN) and folio number. In case of non-receipt of the copy of a
valid CNIC or NTN (as the case may be), the Company would be unable to comply with
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and SROs issued there under.

6. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another Member as
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting on his/her behalf. The instrument
appointing proxy, as per the format available at Company's website, must be submitted
at the Share Registrar Office not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

7. The Members are requested to notify the Company if there is any change in their address
immediately; in case of physical shares, to the Company/Share Registrar and for CDC
chares, to respective Central Depository System (CDS) participants.
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10.

11.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines:
a. For attending the Meeting:

i) In case individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and /or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded
shall authenticate his/her identity by sending his/her copy of CNIC at the time
of registration for attending the Meeting and shall authenticate his/her original
CNIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting;

ii) In case of corporate entity, the copy of Board of Directors' resolution/power of
attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be sent (unless it has been
provided earlier) along with other required information for registration.

b.  For appointing proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii) Attested form.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney
with specimen signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless it has been
provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

An updated list for unpaid dividend / unclaimed shares of the Company is available on
the Company's website www.karamceramics.com These are dividend or shares which
have remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of over three years from the date these
became due and payable. Claims can be lodged by shareholders on Claim Forms as are
available on the Company's website. Claims Forms must be submitted to the Company's
Share Registrar Office for receipt of Dividend /shares.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has issued a letter No.
CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 26,2021 addressed to all listed companies
drawing their attention towards the provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017
which requires them to replace shares issued by them in physical form with shares in the
Book-Entry -form within a period not exceeding four years from the date of the promulgation
of the Act. In order to ensure full compliance with the provisions of the aforesaid Section
72 and to benefit from the facility of holding shares in the Book-Entry- Form, the shareholders
who still hold shares in physical form are requested to convert their shares in the Book-
Entry -Form.

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through email: In pursuance of the directions
given by SECP, those Members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in
Future through email instead of receiving the same by post are advised to give their formal
consent along with their valid email address on a Standard Request Form which is available
at the Company's website i.e.http://www .karamceramics.com and send the said form
duly filled in and signed along with a copy of his/her valid CNIC/Passport at the Share
Registrar Office. Please note that giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial
Statements instead of receiving the same by post is optional, in case you do not wish to
avail this facility please ignore the Note,
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRPERSON

Karam Ceramics Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act,
2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 with respect
to the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.

The Board devises all major policies and strategies to efficiently and effectively manage the
Company and is consistent about promoting and enabling innovation within the Company.
The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness
is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the
Company.

During the financial year 2021-22 the overall performance of the Board measured on the basis
of approved criteria for the year was satisfactory. Improvement is an ongoing process leading
to action plans.

However, it is important to mention that the new management has taken over on July 26,2022
and the performance for the year in question is being formalize by the new board and
management.

The over all assessment as satisfactory is based on an evaluation of integral components,
including vision ,mission and values , engagement in strategic planning , formulation of policies,
monitoring the organization's business activities , monitor financial resource management,
effective fiscal oversight , equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out
the Board’s business.

The Board of Directors of the Company received agendas and supporting written material
including follow up materials in sufficient time prior to the board and its committee meetings.
The board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The non-
executive and independent directors are equally involved in important decisions.

g \l’lm‘\ih “ablv
Suraiya Nasir

Chairperson
Date: October 22,2022
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R!MITED .
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. In millions)
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Sales 818 1126 927 1439 1210 861 1196 1304 1278 1156
Gross Profit -198 35.74 -66 187 136 22 58 134 93 111
Expenses (Net) 104 123 119 136 120 107 95 87 72 96
Profit before Taxtation -257.7 -7.8 -95 51 16 -85 -0.06 47 23 14
Profit after Taxtation = -251.7 41.63 -43 28 14 -75 -22 37 17 24
Dividend % 5% 8% - 12%  10% -
Right Shares % = - - - - - - - - -
Earning per Share (Rs.) -17.30 286 -3.01 198 095 -512 -154 254 116 0.17
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of your company have pleasure in submitting the report along with audited
accounts for the year ended 30th June 2022.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

During the year ended June 30, 2022 the sales of the company decreased by Rs.308.562 million
from Rs. 1,126.65 million in the corresponding period of last year representing decrease in 27%
which is impact of low production during the year .

Cost of sales decreased to Rs. 1,016.1 million from Rs. 1,090.9 million in corresponding period
of last year representing decrease of 7%.

RETAINED EARNING

Your company is to report a loss before tax at Rs. 257.7 million compared to loss of Rs.7.8 million
of last year and after tax loss of Rs. 251.75 million compared to profit of Rs. 41.62 million of last
year. The management of your company will continuously make efforts for improving
performance in these difficult days to carry on profitability in future. The company's management
team and marketing staff has given the challenges and aggressive target to meet in ensuing
year.

LOSS /EARNINGS PER SHARE

Loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2022 is Rs. 17.30 as compare to Earning per share
Rs. 2.86 for the last year.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment to
ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we
operate.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Your company is aware of its social responsibilities and continues to contribute for health and
education in Pakistan.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future outlook of the Construction and its Ancillaries industries in short to medium term
seem to be in continuous pressure owing to the national economic situation as well as international
instability.

However, The new management of Karam Ceramics Limited is taking a positive approach in
the long term for the Company and is working towards restructuring and developing the
company to enhance its capabilities to deliver diversified and better quality products and
services.




CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of the company have reviewed the Code of Corporate Governance and are pleased

to state that:

- The Company is complied with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance
as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

- The financial statements, prepared by the management of your company present fairly
its state of affairs, the results of its operation, cash flow and changes in equity.

- Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgement.

- The International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements.

- The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

There are no outstanding statutory payments due on account of taxes, levies and charges
except those disclosed in these financial statements.

- There has been no material deviation from the best practice of Corporate Governance,
as detailed in the listing regulations.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD

During the year under review four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance
is as follows: -

Mr. Irshad Ali S. Kassim
Mr. Munawar Ali S. Kassim
Ms Mariam S.G. Kassim
Mr.Shahid Anwer Tata
Mr.Suleman Basaria
Ms.Roshan Ara Sayani

Ms. Maneeza Kassim

N @ =
N N

(Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend the Board meetings.)
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was
as follows:

Members Name Attendance
Mr. Suleman Basaria 4
Ms. Roshan Ara 3
Ms. Maneeza Kassim 4

(Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend the meetings.)

11
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HR COMMITTEE

The HR Committee held one (1) meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:

Members Name Attendance
Ms.Roshan Ara Sayani 1
Mr. Munawar Ali S. Kassim 1
Ms. Maneeza Kassim 1

(Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend the meetings.)
Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Directors shall from time to time be determined by the members in
the General Meeting subject to the provision of Companies Act 2017.

TRAINING PROGRAM OF DIRECTORS:

Code of Corporate Governance requires that every listed Company to make appropriate
arrangements for the orientation courses for their directors. Three of the existing directors of
the company are exempted from the directors training program as they have minimum 14 years
of education and have experience of 15 years on the board of listed company. The Board of
your Company has taken necessary steps to meet with the requirements of this clause. All
directors have obtained certification as required under provisions of Code of Corporate
Governance.

EMPLOYEES RELATION

The management would like to place on record its appreciation for the positive attitude of the
labour union during the year under review and we look forward for its support in resolving
all issues mutually with the active cooperation of the labor union.

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. Crown Hussain Choudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire
and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.The Board has recommended
of the retiring auditors for the year ending 30 June 2023, for approval of the shareholders in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING

Pattern of share holding as at June 30, 2022 is annexed.




APPRECIATION

The Directors take this opportunity to thank the all foreign and local suppliers of plant &
machinery and raw material, government agencies, shareholders, and staff/employees for their
cooperation and contribution towards the progress of the company. We would also like to thank

banks and financial institutions and customers for the confidence reposed by them on the
company.

n
. . M, 7

S wiaiwe Nasw & _ Q/,

SURAIYA NASIR MAZHAR ALI NASIR

CHAIRPERSON CHIEF EXECUTIVE

October 22, 2022
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Karam Ceramics Limited

Vision Statement

® Tobecome leading Ceramic manufacturing Industry in Pakistan with complete

unit of Tiles and Floor Tiles.

Mission Statement

® To produce unique designs, cost effective and durable product so as to compete

with the imported tiles.

Corporate Goal

® Increase market share in Pakistan and export to other countries

Overall Corporate Strategy

® Maintain quality management system i.e. ISO 9002

e Contain cost and improve quality by automation of production line and training
to personnel

RANGE OF PRODUCTS

COLOURED & DECORATIVE /EFFECT GLAZED WALL TILES

- 15cm x 15cm 20cm x 20cm
- 20cm x 60cm 30cm x 60cm
- 20cm x 30cm 25cm x 33cm
- 30cm x 30cm 30cm x 46cm
- 40cm x 40cm 25cm x 25cm
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of Company : Karam Ceramics Limited
Year ended June 30, 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the regulations in the following

manner:

1.

The total number of Directors are 07 as per the following.

a) Male -04
b) Female -03

The composition of the Board is as follows
Category Name
Independent Directors Mr. Shahid Tata

Mr. Suleman Basaria
Ms. Roshan Ara Sayani

Executive Directors Mr. Irshad Ali S. Kassim
Mr. Munawar Ali S. Kassim

Non - Executive Directors Ms. Mariam Shaban Ali
Ms. Maneeza Kassim

Female Directors Ms. Mariam Shaban Ali

Ms. Maneeza Kassim
Ms. Roshan Ara Sayani

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more
than seven listed companies, including this company.

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended
is maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the act and these Regulations.

19
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7. The meeting of the board was presided over by the Chairman and, in absence by,
the director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with
the requirements of Act and these Regulations with respect to frequency, recording
and circulating minutes of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of
Directors in accordance with the act of these regulations.

9. The company arranged orientation course for its directors as and when needed to
apprise them of their duties and responsibilities. Three directors are certified under
the Directors Training program, and three directors meet the criteria of exemption
under Code of Corporate Governance.

10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions

of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the regulations.

11. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.

(a) Audit Committee:

Mr. Suleman Basaria - Chairman
Mr. Maneeza Kassim - Member
Ms. Roshan Ara - Member

(b) HR & Remuneration Committee:

Ms. Roshan Ara Sayani - Chairperson
Mr. Munawar Ali Kassim - Member
Ms. Maneeza Kassim - Member

The board has appointed the following members of HR & remuneration Committee
for the period of three years w.e.f. 28-10-2019 in the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on the 28-10-2019.

Ms. Roshan Ara Sayani - Chairperson
Mr. Munawar Ali Kassim - Member
Ms. Maneeza Kassim - Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committee have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.
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14. The Frequency of the meeting (Quarterly/Yearly) of the committee were as per

following

(@) Audit committee meeting: - (Quarterly)

(b) HR & Remuneration Committee - (Yearly)

15. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function who are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purposes and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given
a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board
of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
head of internal audit, Company secretary or Director of the Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or
any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with and all other requirements of the Regulations
have been complied with.

By order of the Board

g \l’lm‘\ih “ablv

Suraiya Nasir
Chairperson
22nd October, 2022
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Independent Auditor's Review report to the Members of
Karam Ceramics Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained
in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the 'Regulations') prepared by Board of Directors
of Karam Ceramics Limited (the 'Company"), for the year ended June, 30, 2022 in accordance
with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements "Of the Regulations. A review
is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors'
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness
of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 We are only required and have ensured compliance,
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures
to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance for and on
behalf of the Company, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations
as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations
as reflected in the paragraph reference wherein it is stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph Reference Description

1) 31(7) & (8) Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan,
reporting framework and procedures and ensuring that the
internal audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the company.

G}M #ﬂéaan @ <.
Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi.
Date: October 22, 2022
UDIN: CR202210207yFvjewKqE




Independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of Karam Ceramics Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of the Karam Ceramics Limited ( the
Company),which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30,2022 and the statement
of profit or loss, and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the period ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the profit and loss statement the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), In the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of its
profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the period
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:

S.No,

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Revenue Recognition

Refer note 25 to the annexed financial
statements

The Company has recognized the revenue
amounting Rs.818,082,431million during the
year ended June 30, 2022. The Company's
revenue is derived from local sales.

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter as it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Company and because of the
potential risk that revenue transactions may
not be appropriately recorded and disclosed
in the financial statements.

Contingencies
Refer note 24 to the annexed financial
statements.

The Company is subject to material litigations
involving recoveries of tariff, rates, cess and
tax.

Our audit procedures, included the following;:

- Obtained understanding evaluated the
design and tested the controls over the
process of capturing, processing and
recording of revenue.

- Assessed, the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting Policy for recording
of revenue in line with requirements of
applicable accounting and reporting
standards.

- Performing tests of control to confirm our
understanding of the process by which
revenue is calculated.

- Compare, on a sample basis ,specific
revenue transactions recorded before and
after the reporting date with underlying
documentation to assess whether revenue
has been recognized in the appropriate
accounting period

ii.

The accounting for, and disclosure of,
contingencies is complex and is a matter of
most significance in our audit because of the
judgements required to determine the level of
certainty on these matters.

- Evaluated the appropriateness of the
disclosures provided under the revenue
standard IFRS-15 and assessed the
completeness and mathematical accuracy
of the relevant disclosures

Our audit procedures amongst others, included
the following;:

- Obtained an understanding of the
Company's process and controls over
litigations through meetings with the
management and reviewed the minutes of
the Board of Directors

- Inspected correspondence file of the
company with regulatory departments and
the Company's external counsel.

- Circularized confirmations to the
Company's external legal advisor.

- Whilst noting the inherent uncertainties
involved with the legal and regulatory
matters, assessing the appropriateness of
the related disclosures made in the annexed
financial statements.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements .

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit We also;

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors'
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion;

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 ( XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980),

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Imran
Shaikh.

@M #wg«;av} @ -

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: 22 October, 2022

UDIN: AR202210207405SDkZg8
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022
Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5
Right-of-use assets 6
Long term security deposits 7
Current assets
Stores and spares 8
Stock in trade
Trade debts 10
Loans and advances - considered good 11
Advance tax
Refunds due from the government 12
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 13
Short term investment
Cash and bank balances 14
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
15,000,000 (2021: 15,000,000) ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 15
Unappropriated profit
Revaluation surplus on property, plant & equipment 16

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----

1,040,756,705 1,193,605,188
871,421 1,089,275
898,453 897,038
1,042,526,579 1,195,591,501
31,141,875 23,639,489
618,481,474 625,850,836
6,559,905 34,942,121
787,427 1,282,812
16,295,409 19,955,270
45,852,024 42,796,430
5,033,711 16,287,705
7,000,000 7,000,000
4,761,561 15,240,576
735,913,387 786,995,239
1,778,439,966 1,982,586,740
150,000,000 150,000,000
145,486,760 145,486,760
(26,426,561) 145,270,592
421,521,806 501,584,335
2,340,703 8,035,251
542,922,707 800,376,939
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Deferred income - government grant
Post employment benefits

Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Markup accrued on loans

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long term financing
Unclaimed dividend

Dividend payable

Lease liabilities

Provision for taxation

Total liabilities

Contingencies and Commitments

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILIITIES

Note

17

18
19
20

21
22
23
17

24

2022 2021
----- Rupees -----

613,952,693 399,843,438
- 419,473
- 3,159,809
90,330,501 83,266,939
54,048,315 72,564,003
758,331,509 559,253,663
73,086,444 105,171,611
38,001,226 35,174,733
314,809,771 336,907,805
36,981,209 121,680,310
513,191 513,191
3,148,405 6,225,120
419,473 383,693
10,226,030 16,899,676
477,185,749 622,956,139
1,235,517,258 1,182,209,802
1,778,439,966 1,982,586,740

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Chief Executive

Vg

Chief Financial Officer

Quge




STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note
Revenue 25
Cost of sales 26
Gross (loss) / profit
Selling and distribution expenses 27
Administrative expenses 28
Other expenses 29
Operating (loss) / profit
Other income 30
Finance cost 31
(Loss) / profit before taxation
Taxation 32
(Loss) / profit after taxation
(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted 33

EERAMICS
L. IMITED
WALL TILES - FLOOR TILES
2022 2021
----- Rupees -----
818,082,431 1,126,645,068
(1,016,124,940) (1,090,903,543)
(198,042,509) 35,741,525
12,566,904 11,004,624
26,982,243 23,441,323
989,130 837,800
(40,538,277) (35,283,747)
(238,580,786) 457,778
41,325,650 80,050,037
(60,468,261) (88,309,741)
(19,142,611) (8,259,704)
(257,723,397) (7,801,926)
5,963,714 49,431,251
(251,759,683) 41,629,325
(17.30) 2.86

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.
o

i
Chief Executive

v

Chief Financial Officer

Quge
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year ended June 30, 2022

2022 2021
----- Rupees -----
(Loss) / Profit after taxation (251,759,683) 41,629,325
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation (8,020,491) 4,071,958
Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligation 2,325,942 (1,180,868)
(5,694,549) 2,891,090
Items in subsequent periods that may be
reclassified to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings (53,712,929) 217,912,537
Deferred tax on surplus of buildings 1,500,211 (41,696,936)
(52,212,719) 176,215,601
Total comprehensive (Loss) / income for the year (309,666,950) 220,736,016

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

a ) | .
e Ve \Q\«@@u\@
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Share  Unappropriated ~ Surpluson  Remeasurement  Total
Capital Profit revaluationof  of retirement

property, plant benefit

and equipment  obligation

--------------------- (Rupees)---------------------
Balance at July 01,2020 145,486,760 83,093,742 345,316,258 5,144,161 579,640,921
Profit after taxation for the year
ended June 30,2021 - 41,629,325 - 41,629,325
Other comprehensive income for the year
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation - - - 4,071,958 4,071,958
Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligation - - - (1,180,868) (1,180,868)

2,891,090 2,891,09

Surplus on revaluation of land and

building - net of deferred tax - - 176,215,601 - 176,215,601
Transferred from surplus on revaluation
of property, plant and equipment incremental

depreciation for the year - net of deferred tax - 19,947 525 (19,947 525) - -
- 19,947,525 156,268,077 - 176,215,601
Balance as at June 30, 2021 145,486,760 145,270,592 501,584,335 8,035,251 800,376,939

(Loss) after taxation for the year
ended June 30, 2021 - (251,759,683) - - (251,759,683)

Other comprehensive income for the year

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation - - - (8,020,491) (8,020,491)

Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligation - - 2,325,942 2,325,942
- - - (5,694,549) (5,694,549)
Surplus on revaluation of land and

building - net of deferred tax 53,712,929 (53,712,929)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation

of property, plant and equipment incremental

depreciation for the year - net of deferred tax - 26,349,600 (26,349,600)

80,062,529 (80,062,529) (5,694,549)

Balance as at June 30, 2022 145,486,760 (26,426,561) 421,521,807 2,340,703 542,922,707

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

i
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items
Depreciation

Provision for gratuity

Amortization of grant

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on remeasurement of loans

Liabiities no longer payable

Finance cost

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current asset

Security Deposit

Stores and spares

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Short term deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Short Term investment

Increase / (decrease) in current Liability
Trade and other payables

Cash flows generated from operations
Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Sales tax paid

Gratuity paid

Workers' profit participation fund paid

Net cash used in operating activities

32

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
(257,723,397) (7,801,926)
95,983,582 94,089,028
14,527,756 (10,231,313)
- (4,697,793)
(40,817,244) (531,360)
- (42,870,423)
- (31,949,821)
60,468,261 88,309,741
130,162,355 92,118,059
(127,561,042) 84,316,132
(1,415) -

(7,502,386) (10,407,525)
7,369,362 (198,645,115)
28,382,216 66,507,014
495,385 (642,666)
11,253,994 (15,614,010)
- (7,000,000)
39,997,155 (165,802,302)
(29,504,473) (13,431,143)
(117,068,360) (94,917,313)
(44,708,998) (42,536,878)
(16,619,214) 89,986
(4,893,487) 3,256,243
(15,484,685) (7,478,521)
- (524,188)
(81,706,384) (47,193,358)
(198,774,744) (142,110,670)




CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment

Note

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing

Short term borrowings

Lease rentals paid

Dividend paid

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

38
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2022 2021
————— Rupees -----

- (57,000)
97,900,000 900,000
97,900,000 843,000

116,017,000 112,140,292
(94,420,904) (11,347,263)
(446,521) (441,625)
(3,076,715) -
18,072,860 100,351,404
(82,801,884) (40,916,266)
(193,295,985) (152,379,719)
(276,097,868) (193,295,985)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.
UL

i
Chief Executive

-

Chief Financial Officer

Qugle
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Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. THE LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Karam Ceramics Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on April 8, 1979
as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies
Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The
registered office of the Company is situated at present address "A-31, Sindhi Muslim
Cooperative Housing Society, Karachi previous address: BC-6, Block 5, Kehkashan,
Clifton Karach, Pakistan and manufacturing facilities of the Company are located at
295/311, Deh Halkani, Hub Dam Road, Manghopir, Karachi. The principal activity of
the Company is manufacturing and sale of tiles.

Business Unit Geographical Location
Factory 295/311, Deh Halkani, Hub Dam Road,
Manghopir, Karachi.

On November 12,2021, an intention for the acquisition of 95.6% shares of the company
was made by Swat Ceramics (Private) Limited (SCPL) in accordance with Securities Act
2015 and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2017. However, the proposed acquisition was changed where by the proposed
acquistion was offered by sponsors of SCPL Company rather then the SCPL it self.

On March 04, 2022 the proposed acquirer entered in to an share purchase agreement
with the sponsors of the Compnay for the purchase of 10,613,259 shares which represents
72.95% of the total capital of the Company at a price of Rs. 20 per ordinary share. Further,
a public announcement was made on May 13, 2022 for the purchase of additional 1,967,700
ordinary shares which represents 13.52% of the total capital of the Company at a price
of 62.77 per ordinary share, out of which 536,813 shares were obtained from minority
share holders.

Subsequent to year end and in persuance of share purchase agreement, on July 22, 2022
the new sponsors of the Company enetered into a novation agreement whereby the loan
as mentioned in note 17 of the financial statements of previous sponsors was assigned
to new sponsors with the existing terms and conditions.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
21  Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act,
2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ
from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except to the extent of the following;:

a) Staff retirement benefits (Gratuity)

The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary to
determine the present value of its retirement benefit obligations.

b) Certain property, plant and equipment

The Company is using the revaluation model for certain property, plant and
equipment. Revaluation is performed by an independent valuer periodically.

¢) Interest free loans from directors
The Company is carrying interest free loans from directors at amortized cost.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees (PKR or
Rupee) which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All the
figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Key judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. In addition, it requires management to exercise judgement
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are documented in the following
accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily to:

(a) Property, plant and equipment (refer note 4.1)

(b) Stock-in-trade and stores and spares (refer note 4.3)

(c) Trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and other receivables (refer note 4.4)
(d) Staff retirement benefits (refer note 4.9)

(e) Provisions (refer note 4.16)
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(f) Taxation (refer note 4.8)

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets (refer note 4.5)

(h) Lease liabilities (refer note 4.11)

(i) Government grant (refer note 4.10)

(j) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities (refer note 4.18 & 4.19)

3 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPETATIONS

(@

b)

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current
year

The were certain amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations
that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 01,2021. However,
these are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the
Corporation’s financial reporting and operations and, therefore, have not been
disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 37 Onerous contracts January 1,2022
IAS 16 Proceeds before an asset’s intended use January 1,2022

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the
approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant
to the Corporation and therefore, have not been presented here.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below.

4.1

Property, Plant and Equipment

Owned

Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment other than land, buildings, leasehold
improvements and capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment loss (if any).

Freehold land and building on freehold land are measured at the revalued amount
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any).

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment loss (if any).
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4.2

Revaluation

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of freehold land and building
on freehold land is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as
a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any
decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of freehold land and
building on freehold land is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, held in the Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The surplus on revaluation of
building on freehold land to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net
of deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or revalued amount of assets
(other than freehold land and capital work in progress) over their estimated useful
lives, using the reducing balance method at rates specified in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on derecognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in as
other income in the statement of profit or loss. In case of the derecognition of a
revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus
on revaluation is transferred directly to the unappropriated profit.

Judgement and estimates

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leased

Assets subject to finance lease are stated at lower of present value of minimum
lease payments as per the lease agreements and the fair value of assets less
accumulated depreciation at the basis applicable to Company's owned assets. The
related obligations of lease are accounted for as liabilities. Financial charges are
allocated to accounting periods in a manner so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge on the outstanding liability.
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Inventories

Stock in trade is valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value.
Cost is determined as follows:

Raw materials in stock - Lower of weighted average cost and net realisable
value

Raw materials in transit Lower of actual cost and net realisable value (NRV)

Work-in-process Lower of weighted average cost and net realisable
value

Finished goods - Lower of weighted average cost and net realisable
value

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of communication stores on an on
going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage
pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.

'NRYV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to be incurred to effect
such sale.

Trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and other receivables

These are initially measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Subsequently these are valued at amortised cost. These assets are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Credit loss is based on the expected
credit loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-
financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.




Kanam NO\A

R

WALL TILES - FLOOR TILES

4.6

4.7

4.8

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated to reduce
the carrying amounts of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal
of impairment loss for a cash generating unit is allocated to the assets of the unit,
pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. The increase in the carrying
amounts shall be treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets
and recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount.
Any reversal of impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation
increase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pakistani Rupees at the foreign
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange
approximating those at the statement of financial position date. Exchange gains
/ losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

@) Current

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(ii)

Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses and credits only if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary differences and unused tax losses
and credits.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Judgement and estimates

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses
and corresponding provision for tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain as these
matters are being contested at various legal forums. The Company recognizes
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current assessment of future
taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to
allow the benefit of part or all of that recognised deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Any such reduction shall be reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Off-setting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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4.9

4.10

Employee benefits - retirement benefits
Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Company operates an Unfunded Gratuity Scheme for all its permanent
employees who attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity.

Defined benefit plans provide an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive
on or after retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years
of service and compensation. A defined benefit plan is a plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. The liability recognized in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligations at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligations are
calculated annually by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present values of the defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds or the market rates on government bond. These are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related gratuity obligation.

Remeasurement gains / losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the
defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit or loss.

Judgement and estimates

In determining the liability for long-service payments management must make an
estimate of salary increases over the following five years, the discount rate for the
next five years to use in the present value calculation, and the number of employees
expected to leave before they receive the benefits.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity
in return for compliance with certain past or future conditions related to the entity's
operating activities - e.g. a government subsidy. The definition of "government"
refers to governments, government agencies and similar bodies, whether local,
national or international.

The Company recognizes government grants when there is reasonable assurance
that grants will be received and the Company will be able to comply with conditions
associated with grants.

Government grants are recognized at fair value, as deferred income, when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Company will be
able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants.
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Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognized on
a systematic basis in the income for the year in which the related expenses are
recognized. Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in
income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS
9. IFRS 9 requires loans at below-market rates to be initially measured at their fair
value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at a
market-related interest rate. The benefit that is the government grant is measured
as the difference between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and the
amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of the grant.

Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate is used.
Subsequently these are increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and
remeasured for lease modifications, if any.

Liabilities in respect of short term and low value leases are not recognised and
payments against such leases are recognised as expense in profit or loss.

Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured
and are usually paid within one year of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred except where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset in which such costs are capitalized
as part of the cost of that asset.

Financial instruments

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of

the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets,
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss
arising on derecognition are recognised directly in profit or loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

<) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets
which are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities
are subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may
be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets
and liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value at and subsequent
to initial recognition. Changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is
established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on
equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Assets or liabilities that are not
contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements
imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.
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The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables,
the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company
recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value minus transaction costs. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of new
liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported
in the financial statements if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-
off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions
Recognition and measurement

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised when the
company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Judgement and estimates

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes
in laws, regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and
can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes.
Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised
as part of cost of an asset.

Dividend and appropriation in / from reserves

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared.
Appropriations of profit are reflected in the statement of changes in equity in the
period in which such appropriations are approved.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when there is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognised until their realisation becomes
virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are recognised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Sales are stated net of sales tax & discounts & are recognised when persuasive
evidence of sale exists. The key area of judgment in recognising revenue is the
timing of recognition, which reflects the point or period when The Company has
transferred control of goods to customers. Revenue from sale of goods is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised as revenue
on dispatch of goods to customers.
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Profit on bank balances are recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal
amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

4.22 Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share (EPS) for its
shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of "the company" by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Building
Freehold Factory Lahore Plantand  Furniture Moulds ~ Laboratory ~ Vehicles Total
Land Buildingon ~ warehouse on ~ machinery  and fittings equipment
frecholdland ~ freehold land
Rupees

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2022
Opening net book value 238,380,000 430,219,210 5058137 511361487 1206476 541477 3145 6,607,056 1,193,605,188
Additions (at cost) - - - - - - - - -
Surplus on revaluation

during the year - . - - - - - . .
Depreciation charge - (@3,021921) - (51,136,149)  (120648)  (162:443) (3,115)  (1,32145D)  (95,765,727)
Disposal (50,040,000) - (5,258,137) - - - - (1784619  (57,082,756)
Closing net book value 188,340,000 387,197,289 0 460225338 1,085,828 379,034 28,030 3,501,186 1,040,756,705
Gross carrying value basis
At June 30, 2022
Cost 188,340,000 766,919,649 5173140 1841664592 12646654 8356171 1505564 22,537,827 2,847,143,597
Accumulated depreciation - (3797223600 (5,173,140) (1,381439,254) (11560826) (7,977,137)  (1477534) (19,036,641) (1,806,386,392)
Net book value 188,340,000 387,197,289 - 460,225,338 1,085,828 379,034 28,030 3,501,186 1,040,756,705
Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2021
Opening net book value 164,250,000 326,577,745 94441 568179430 1,340,529 773,539 34,606 8,570,710 1,009,821,000
Additions (at cost) - - - - - - - 57,000 57,000
Surplus on revaluation

during the year 74,130,000 138,609,397 5,173,140 - - - - - 17912537
Depreciation charge - (34967932) 044 (56817943)  (134053)  (232,062) (3461)  (1,651,814)  (93,816,709)
Disposal - - - - - - - (368640 (368,040)
Closing net book value 238,380,000 430,219,210 5258137 511,361,487 1,206,476 541,477 31,145 6,607,256 1,193,605,188
Gross carrying value basis
At June 30, 2021
Cost 238,380,000 772,092,789 2604102 1841604592 12640654 8356171 1505504 32,906,827 2910,216,699
Accumulated depreciation - (336,700439)  (2579,105) (1330303105 (11440,178) (7814,694)  (1474419) (26299,571) (1,716,611,511)
Net book value 238,380,000 435,392,350 84997 511,361,487 1,206,476 541,477 31,145 6,607,256 1,193,605,188
Rate of Depreciation - 10% 10% 10% 10% 30% 10% 20%




Note 2022 2021
----- Rupees -----

5.1  The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 26 94,590,858 92,665,751

Selling and distribution expenses 27 566,146 554,624

Administrative expenses 28 608,723 596,334

95,765,727 93,816,709

5.2 Detail of disposal of property and equipment

As of June 30, 2022

Disposal of fixed asset during the year having witten down value of more than Rs. 500,000/ are

as follows:

Particulars Original ~ Accumulated ~ Written ~ Sales Gain/ Sold to Relationship ~ Mode of
cost depreciation ~ down value ~proceeds (Loss) with disposal
Company
Rupees
Freehold land 50,040,000 - 50,040,000 76,917,600 26,877,600  Third Party None Negotiation
Lahore building & warehouse 7,837,242 2,579,105 5,258,137 8,082,400 2,824,263  Third Party None Negotiation
Vehicle - Toyota Corolla 1,770,500 1,399,199 371,301 2,700,000 2,328,699  Mr. Irshad Ali Kassim Director - Company Policy
Vehicle - Toyota Fortuner 5,181,000 4,311,772 869,228 5500000 4,630,772 Mr. Munawar Ali Kassim Director Company Policy
Vehicle - Toyota Corolla 1,867,500 1,377,946 489,554 2,700,000 2,210,446 Ms. Kulsoom Kassim Director Company
Spouse Policy

Vehicle - Toyota Mark II 1,550,000 1,495,464 54,536 2,000,000 1945464 Ms. Mariam Shaban Director - Company Policy
Total 68,246,242 11,163,486 57,082,756 97,900,000 40,817,244

As at Jun 30, 2021

Disposal of fixed asset during the year is amounting to Rs. 368,640/-
5.3  Revalued freehold land and factory building on freehold land

On 2005, the Company elected to measure freehold land and factory building on freehold land
(classified as property, plant and equipment) using the revaluation model. The fair value of the
Company's freehold land and factory building on freehold land are determined on periodic, but
at least triennial, by an independent professionally qualified valuer.

The carrying values of the freehold land and factory building and Lahore warehouse building on
freehold land would have been Rs.3,964,588 (2021: Rs. 3,964,588) and Rs. 53,467,559 (2021:
Rs. 59,493,396 ) under the cost model.
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5.4

5.5

Fair value measurements under revaluation model for property, plant and
equipment

The fair value measurements of the Company’s freehold land and factory building
on freehold land as at May 03, 2021 were performed by Dimensions Evaluators
and Consultants (Private) Limited, who are independent valuers not related to the
Company. Dimensions Evaluators and Consultants (Private) Limited are members
of Pakistan Banks' Association and they have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the fair value measurement of properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value of the freehold land was determined through market study of trend
of sale and purchase in the area. The fair value of factory building on freehold
land was determined using the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market
participant to construct assets of comparable utility and age. The significant inputs
include the estimated construction costs and other ancillary expenditure.

Security
- Soneri Bank Limited

1- Specific ranking charge of Rs. 59 million (2021: Rs. 59 million) over plant
and machinery.

2- 1st Pari Passu Equitable Mortgage charge of Rs. 800 million (2021: Rs. 800
million over factory building on freehold land.

- Habib Bank Limited

1- Specific ranking charge of Rs. 35 million (2021: Rs. 35 million) over plant
and machinery.

2- Combined ranking charge of Rs. 200 million (2021: Rs. 200 million) over
plant and machinery.

-JS Bank Limited

1st Pari Passu charge over present and future freehold land, building on freehold
land, plant and machinery amounting to Rs. 267 million (2021: Rs. 267 million).
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6.1

6.2

6.2.1

5.6  Particulars of immovable property (freehold land and building on freehold
land) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Usage of Immovable property Total Area (square meters)

295/311, Deh Halkani, Manufacturing facility 88626

Hub Dam Road, Manghopir,

Karachi.

2022 2021
----- Rupees -----

LEASES
Right-of-use assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,089,275 1,361,594
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Depreciation expense - 20% reducing balance method (217,855) (272,319)
Balance at the end of the year 871,421 1,089,275

The depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
for the year has been allocated as follows :

Cost of sales 215,182 268,978
Selling and distribution expenses 1,288 1,610
Administrative expenses 1,385 1,731

217,855 272,319

Lease liabilities

The Company acquired vehicle on lease from Soneri Bank Limited at Rs.2,163,550 having maturity
of 5 years. In acorrdance with the terms of agreement, a down-payment was made amounting to
Rs. 460,350. The remaining amount is payable in equal monthly installments whereas the mark-
up is recovered on quarterly bases at 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5%.

Security / collateral

The ownership of the asset will remain with the lessor till the maturity date.

2022 2021

————— Rupees -----
Movement in lease liabilities
Balance at the beginning of the year 803,166 1,123,529
Interest expense - -
Payments (383,693) (320,363)

419,473 803,166
Current portion grouped under current liabilities (419,473) (383,693)
Balance at the end of the year - 419,473
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6.2.2 Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

2022 2021
.. Finance cost ~ Present value . . Present value
Minimum .. Minimum Finance cost .
allocated to of minimum of minimum
lease lease allocated to
ayments future lease ayments future periods lease
pay periods payments paym P payments
< Rupees >
Not later than one year 440,126 20,653 419,473 440,126 56,433 383,693
Later than one year and
not later than five years - - 440,126 20,653 419473
440,126 20,653 419,473 880,252 77,086 803,166
Note 2022 2021
----- Rupees -----
7. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

7.1

50

Others 7.1 898,453 897,038

This includes deposits placed with utility companies including K-Electric, Pakistan
Telecommunication Company Limited and Sui Southern Gas Company.

STORES AND SPARES

Spares 31,058,494 23,557,293
Stores 83,381 82,196
31,141,875 23,639,489

STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material 350,356,931 352,330,262
Packing materials 11,462,258 14,114,590
Work-in-process 3,820,925 11,698,018
Finished goods 252,841,360 247,707,966
618,481,474 625,850,836




9.1

10.

10.1

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

Pledged as security
- Soneri Bank Limited

1st Hypothecation charge over inventory of the Company amounting to Rs. 250.00 million (2021
Rs. 191.5 million).

- Habib Bank Limited

2nd Hypothecation charge over inventory of the Company amounting to Rs. 150 million (2021:
Rs. 150 million).

Note 2022 2021

Trade Debts
Considered good - unsecured 6,559,905 34,942,121

As of June 30, ageing analysis of trade debts is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired - 21,603,273

Past due but not impaired

-1-30days 4,823,148 2,586,941

-30-90 days 1,736,757 1,994,219

- More than 90 days - 8,757,687
6,559,905 34,942,121

LOANS AND ADVANCES - CONSIDERED GOOD
Loans to employees 11.1 387,427 363,600

Advances to:

Suppliers - 485,000
Seller of land 11.2 400,000 400,000
Employees 11.3 - 34,212
400,000 919,212
787,427 1,282,812

Loans have been granted under staff loan policy, as temporary financial assistance, to staff. These
are secured against the gratuity payable to employees and are recoverable in 12 equal monthly
installments. Therefore, all of the amount is recoverable within 1 year as of reporting date.

This represents advance given for purchase of land in Lahore to Mr. Muhammad Latif Bhatti
(deceased). As per the original terms of the agreement, this was the token money given by the
Company to the landlord whilst an amount of Rs. 3.5 million was required to be made in order
to execute the transfer deed. Subsequent to the death of the landlord, the legal heirs refused to
execute the agreement, resultantly, the Company filed a civil suit in Lahore for the specific
performance of the agreement. As on the reporting date, this case is pending. However, the legal
counsel of the Company is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company.

The advances to employees are given to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the
expenses are incurred.
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Note 2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT
Income tax refundable 45,852,024 42,796,430
45,852,024 42,796,430
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 851,196 851,197
Letters of credit 4,095,313 15,401,259
Short term deposits 60,000 -
Other receivables 27,202 35,249
5,033,711 16,287,705
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 37,768 94,682
Cash at banks
- Current accounts 4,711,284 15,134,111
- Deposit accounts 14.1 12,509 11,783
4,723,793 15,145,894
4,761,561 15,240,576
This carries mark-up @ rate of 5.5% (2021: 5%) per anum.
SHARE CAPITAL
2022 2021 2022 2021
(Number of sharesy Rupees -----
Authorized Share Capital
15,000,000 15,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 150,000,000 150,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up Share Capital
13,267,786 13,267,786  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 132,677,860 132,677,860
fully paid in cash
1,280,890 1,280,890  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 12,808,900 12,808,900
issued as bonus shares
14,548,676 14,548,676 145,486,760 145,486,760




15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

16.

Shares held by the related parties of the Company

Name of shareholders

2022

2021

Number of shares

Mr. Irshad Ali S. Kassim 3,315,214 3,315,214
Mr. Munawar Ali S. Kassim 3,583,459 3,583,459
Ms. Mariam Shaban Ali 526,424 526,424
Mrs. Roshan Ara 500 500
Ms. Anushka Kassim 980,226 980,226
Ms. Natalia Kassim 735,920 735,920
Mr. Suleman Basaria 666 666
Mr. Shahid Ahmed 5,000 5,000
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata 1,000 1,000
Mrs. Shaheen A. Rehman 10,000 10,000
Mrs. Sakin Noorallah 10,000 10,000
Ms. Aliza Kassim 1,008,470 1,008,470
Ms. Alisha Irshad Ali 981,226 981,226
Ms. Maneeza 735,920 735,920
Ms. Manisha Kassim 735,920 735,920
Ms. Myra Kassim 735,920 735,920

There has been no movement in ordinary share capital during the year ended June 30, 2022.

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to residual assets of the Company. Ordinary
shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements
in the form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Company. Voting and other
rights are in proportion to the shareholding.

As disclosed in note 1.1, the shares to the proposed acquirer were transferred subsequent to year

end.

2022 2021

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, ____ Rupees -----

PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed

assets as at July 01 610,709,671 420,892,239
Surplus arising on revaluation during the year = 217,912,537
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of

disposal during the period / year (53,712,929) -
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of

incremental depreciation charged during the year (26,349,600) (19,947,525)
Related deferred tax liability (12,262,723) (8,147,580)
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed

assets as at June 30 518,384,419 610,709,671
Less: related deferred tax liability:
at beginning of the year 109,125,336 75,575,981
on surplus arising on revaluation during the year (1,500,211) 41,696,936
on adjustment due to change in tax rate = -
on incremental depreciation charged during the year (10,762,512) (8,147,580)

(96,862,613) (109,125,336)
421,521,806 501,584,335

53




54

Kanam NO\A

=l.IMITEII

WALL TILES - FLOOR TILES

16.1  The revaluation surplus relating to the above-mentioned property, plant and equipment excluding
freehold land is net of applicable deferred income taxes. Incremental depreciation charged on
revalued factory building on freehold land has been transferred to the statement of changes in
equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of incremental depreciation. Incremental
depreciation represents the difference between actual depreciation based on revalued carrying
amount of the asset and equivalent depreciation based on the original carrying amount of the

asset.

17. LONG TERM FINANCING

Banking companies - secured
Soneri Bank Limited

Fair value of Loan outstanding

SBL Refinance Scheme

Fair value of loan outstanding

Adjustment pertaining to fair value of
loan at below market interest rate

Add: net impact recorded in statement of
profit or loss account

Amortised cost as at June 30

JS Bank Limited
Fair value of loan outstanding
Loan modification adjustment

Unwinding of loan at amortized cost
Amortised cost as at June 30

Habib Bank Limited
Fair value of loan outstanding

Related parties - unsecured
Fair value of loan outstanding
Imputed Interest

Fair value of loan outstanding
Loan modification adjustment
Interest bearing loan

Less: Current portion
Banking companies

Note

17.1

17.2

17.5

17.3

17.4

2022 2021
----- Rupees -----

18,628,561 59,219,224
15,192,839 42,711,879
3,159,809 (3,159,809)

- 47,562
18,352,648 39,599,629
- 16,201,334

- 16,201,334

- 16,201,334

- 41,497,787
88,506,745 76,875,485
10,233,261 11,631,260
98,740,006 88,506,745
515,212,687 319,369,454
- (42,870,423)
515,212,687 276,499,031
(36,981,209) (121,680,310)
613,952,693 399,843,438




17.1

17.2

Terms and conditions of borrowings from Soneri Bank Limited are as follows:

Facility name Term Finance-I Term Finance-II Term Finance-III
Loan outstanding

(Fair value) Rs. 2.466 million Rs. 6.156 million Rs 10.006 million
Nature of facility Term Finance Term Finance Term Finance
Sanctioned limit 7.400 million 15.6 million 34.100 million
Markup rate 6MK+2.5% p.a. 6MK+2.5% p.a. 6MK+2% p.a.
Total installments 36 monthly 36 monthly 36 monthly
No. of installments

outstanding 1 monthly 1 monthly 1 monthly
Date of final repayment July 29,2022 July 29,2022 July 29,2022
Purpose:

For import of plant and machinery
For local purchase of plant and machinery

Security/Collateral:

First equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 800 million on factory property including land, building,
plant and machinery situated at Hub Dam road, Karachi.

First hypothecation charge over stocks of the company amounting to Rs. 191.5 million.
Specific charge on imported machinery for Rs. 59 million.

Personal guarantees provided by the directors of the Company.

Due to the effects of pandemic, State Bank of Pakistan took various steps to support the economy.
SBP introduced a refinance scheme for payment of salaries and wages at subsidized rate of
borrowing.

The Company has obtained the said borrowing from a commercial bank at subsidized rate in two
tranches on May 21, 2020 and June 8, 2020. In accordance with the terms of the grant, the company
is prohibited to lay-off the employees atleast for three months from the period of the grant. The
terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:

Facility name SBP - Refinance
Loan outstanding (Fair value) 18.30 million
Nature of facility Term Finance
Sanctioned limit 48.82 million
Markup rate SBP+3% p.a
Total installments 8 quarterly

No. of installments outstanding 1 quarterly
Date of final repayment July 29, 2022
Purpose:

For the payment of salaries and wages of employees of the Company excluding Director's
remuneration.

Security/Collateral:

- Ist Hypothecation Charge over the stocks of the company for 191.50 million.
- 1st Pari Passu Equitable Mortgage charge of 800 million over fixed assets of the company.
- Personal guarantees provided by the directors of the Company.
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The maturity date of these loans was modified on July 1, 2019 as a result of restructuring of loans
with banking companies whereby these loans were subordinated to the banks. Keeping in view
the forecasted cashflows and profits, the management decided to extend the maturity date of these
loans to June 30, 2025. As a result, modification adjustments have been made to these loans in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9. In addition, unwinding of discount has also been
recorded thereagainst.

During the year, directors decided to restructure the return of loan which is to be based on profit

at an average rate of return at 7% instead of fixed rate. As a result, modification adjustment has
been made to these loans in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

Adjustment pertaining to fair value of loan at below market interest rate

Difference of fair value of loan and loan received 3,159,809 3,159,809
Amortisation of loan (3,159,809) (4,697,793)
- (1,537,984)

Deffered Income - Government grant

Grant recognised on loan at below market interest rate 3,159,809 8,207,479.00
Less: unwinding of grant to profit or loss account (3,159,809) (5,047,670.00)
- 3,159,809

Less: current portion - -
- 3,159,809

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Description of the unfunded gratuity scheme

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who attain the minimum
qualifying period at varying percentages of last drawn gross salary. The percentage depends on
the number of service years with the Company. Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation
carried out as at June 30, 2022 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Risks on account of defined benefit plan

The Company faces the following risks on account of defind benefit plan:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than

what the Group has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount
would also increase proportionately.
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19.2.2

19.2.3

19.2.4

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality.
This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher
side.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal
probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled

benefits of the beneficiary.

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference
to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Actuarial assumptions

Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in the valuation:

2022 2021
Discount factor used 10% 10.0%
Expected rate of increase in salaries N/A 9
Retirement age (years) 60 60
2022 2021
Movement of the liability recognized 777 Rupees -----
in the statement of financial position
Opening balance 83,266,939 105,048,731
Charge for the year 14,527,756 (10,231,313)
Remeasurement 8,020,491 (4,071,958)
Benefits paid (15,484,685) (7,478,521)
Closing balance 90,330,501 83,266,939
Movement in the present value of
defined benefit obligation
Opening balance 83,266,939 105,048,731
Service cost 3,993,357 (18,563,989)
Interest cost 10,534,399 8,332,676
Remeasurement 8,020,491 (4,071,958)
Benefits paid (15,484,685) (7,478,521)
Closing balance 90,330,501 83,266,939
Amounts recognised in the statement
of profit or loss account
Service cost 3,993,357 (18,563,989)
Interest cost 10,534,399 8,332,676
14,527,756 (10,231,313)
Amounts recognised in statement of other
comprehensive income (OCI)
Remeasurement due to:
Change in financial assumptions 141,718 87,557
Experience adjustments 7,878,773 (4,159,515)
8,020,491 (4,071,958)
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20.1

21.

22.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Credit balance arising in respect of:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowance

- revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
- Right of use of assets

Debit balance arising in respect of:

- Finance lease obligations

- provision for post employment benefit obligations
- unused tax loss

- minimum tax credit

The gross movement in the deferred tax liability during the year is as follows:

Balance as at July 01
Amounts recognised in statement of P&L
Amounts recognised in statement of OCI

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
86,310,433 90,729,002
96,862,612 109,125,335
252,712 -
183,425,757 199,854,337
(121,647) (82,972)
(26,195,845) (24,147 412)
(73,511,744) (73,511,744)
(29,548,206) (29,548,206)
54,048,315 72,564,003
30,867,070 96,017,129
(16,189,745) (66,330,927)
(2,325,942) 1,180,868
12,351,383 30,867,070

Deferred tax balance has been recognised at the rate at which these are expected to be settled /

realised.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors / bills payable
Accrued expenses

Sales tax payable

Workers' welfare fund
Withholding tax payable

Markup accrued on loans

Accrued finance cost :

Financing from banking companies
Long term financing from related parties

38,008,221 41,184,742
30,142,112 53,833,465
1,788,732 6,682,219
2,616,070 2,616,070
531,309 855,115
73,086,444 105,171,611
9,510,753 6,684,260
28,490,473 28,490,473
38,001,226 35,174,733




23.

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

24.

24.1

Note 2022 2021
————— Rupees -----

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Borrowings from banks - secured
Soneri Bank Limited 23.1 237,573,124 165,716,541
Soneri Bank Limited FATR 23.2 33,950,342 99,246,122
Habib Bank Limited 23.3 43,286,305 42,820,018
Habib Bank Limited FATR 23.4 - 29,125,124

314,809,771 336,907,805

This represents Running Finance Facility amounting to Rs. 250 million (2021: 231.5 million). The
profit rate on this facility is 3 months KIBOR plus 2% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 2%). This is
secured by first hypothecation charge over stock of the company for Rs. 191.5 million and first
pari passu equitable charge of Rs. 800 million over fixed assets of the company and personal
guarantee of the Directors and lien on bank account of one of director Mr. Irshas Ali Kassim to
the extent of USD 0.3m.

This represents Finance Against Trust Receipt Facility amounting to Rs. 100 million (2021: Rs. 100
million). The profit rate on this facility is 3 months KIBOR + 2% (2021: KIBOR + 2%). This is secured
by first hypothecation charge over stock of the company for Rs. 191.5 million and first pari passu
equitable charge of Rs. 800 million over fixed assets of the company and personal guarantee of the
Directors.

This represents Running Finance Facility amounting to Rs. 50 million (2021: Rs. 50 million). The
profit rate on this facility is 3 months KIBOR plus 1% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 1%). This is
secured by third party mortgage over Company's headoffice situated at Kehkashan Clifton, Karachi
valued at Rs. 189 million, ranking charge over plant and machinery of Rs. 200 million and second
ranking charge on hypothecated stock and first charge on book debts of Rs. 150 million and
personal guarantee of the Directors.

This represents Finance Against Trust Receipt Facility amounting to Rs. 80 million (2021: Rs. 80
million). The profit rate on this facility is 3 months KIBOR + 1% (2021: Matching tenor KIBOR plus
1%). This is secured by third party mortgage over Company's headoffice situated at Kehkashan
Clifton, Karachi valued at Rs. 189 million, ranking charge over plant and machinery of Rs. 200
million and second ranking charge on hypothecated stock and first charge on book debts of Rs.
150 million and personal guarantee of the Directors.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Company has following contingent liabilities in respect of legal and other claims arising in
the ordinary course of business.

Claims subject to legal proceedings

The details of claims by the company which are currently subject to the legal proceedings are
detailed below:
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The Company filed suit no. 151 of 2017 with High Court of Sindh against the increase of higher
gas tariff rate from December 30, 2016 by the Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC). The
Honorable High Court passed an interim injunction and ordered to deposit cheques monthly for
the price differential amount with the Nazir of Sindh High Court, which amounted to Rs. 100,880,590
for the period from January'17 to June'l19. The Company, based on the legal advice of its legal
counsel, is confident of a favourable outcome of these applications to the Sindh High Court and,
therefore, has not provided for this amount in these financial statements.

Name of the court, agency or authority:
- High Court of Sindh
Principal parties

- Karam Ceramics Limited VS Federation of Pakistan , Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority and Sui
Sothern Gas Company Limited.

Date instituted
- January 19, 2017

The Company filed suit no. 1803 of 2020 with High Court of Sindh against the increase of higher
gas tariff rate from October 2020 by the Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC). The Honorable
High Court passed an interim injunction and ordered to deposit cheques monthly for the price
differential amount with the Nazir of Sindh High Court, which amounted to Rs. 24,251,461 for the
period from October'20 to June'21. The Company, based on the legal advice of its legal counsel,
is confident of a favourable outcome of these applications to the Sindh High Court and, therefore,
has not provided for this amount in these financial statements.

Name of the court, agency or authority:
- High Court of Sindh
Principal parties

- Karam Ceramics Limited VS Federation of Pakistan , Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority and Sui
Sothern Gas Company Limited.

Date instituted
- November 20, 2020

During the year 2011, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) was levied at Rs 13 per
unit of gas consumption through the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011 (the Act) .
The rate was increased to Rs 100 per unit w.e.f. July 2012 whereas subsequently it was reduced
to Rs 50 per unit through a notification dated September 7, 2012. The High Court of Sindh through
its order dated September 19, 2012, however, has restrained Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
(SSGCL), being the company required to charge and collect the cess, from charging cess over and
above Rs 13 per unit from the Company. In case of a separate petition on June 13, 2013, the GIDC
Act was declared unconstitutional by the Peshawar High Court (PHC) and such judgment was
also upheld by the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) on August 22, 2014.
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On September 25, 2014, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Ordinance, 2014 (the GIDC
Ordinance) was promulgated which levied GIDC at Rs 150 per unit. Section 8 of the Ordinance
interalia states that notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any decree of any court,
the cess levied under the Act shall be deemed to have been validly levied under the provision of
the Ordinance (i.e. retrospective application). The Company filed a petition to invalidate the
promulgation of the Ordinance which is pending adjudication. In the meantime on the basis of
the Company’s application on October 10, 2014, the High Court of Sindh issued a stay order in
favour of the Company refraining SSGCL from collecting GIDC under the GIDC Ordinance.

On May 23, 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (the new GIDC Act) was
promulgated which levied GIDC at Rs 100 per unit. Section 8 of the new GIDC Act interalia states
that notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any decree of any court, the cess levied
under the new GIDC Act shall be deemed to have been validly levied under the provision of the
new GIDC Act (i.e. retrospective application). The Company filed a petition to invalidate the
promulgation of the new GIDC Act which is pending adjudication. On the basis of the Company's
application on July 24, 2015, the High Court of Sindh issued a stay order in favour of the Company
refraining SSGCL from collecting GIDC under the GIDC Act, 2015.

The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) issued judgment on August 13, 2020 regarding
applicability of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). The Court has ordered that GIDC
shall be recovered in 24 equal monthly installments starting from August 1, 2020 without the
component of late payment surcharge.

The Company, in this regard, filed Suit No. Nil of 2020 before the Honourable High Court of Sindh
challenging the bills issued to the Company by SSGC allegedly in view of the Supreme Court
judgement. While presenting arguments before the Hounourable High Court of Sindh, reference
was made to paragraph 37 and 42 of the Supreme Court Judgement whereby the Company has
never collected GIDC from its clients / customers and have not even passed GIDC to their clients
/ customers.

The High Court of Sindh passed a restraining order preventing SSGC from taking any coercive
action against the Company for non-payment of any bills showing arrears.

The Company, based on the legal advice of its legal counsel, is confident of a favourable outcome
and, therefore, has not provided for GIDC amount in these financial statements.

Name of the court, agency or authority:
- High Court of Sindh
Principal parties

- Karam Ceramics Limited VS Federation of Pakistan , Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority and Sui
Sothern Gas Company Limited.

Date instituted
- October 10,2014

- July 24,2015
- August 30,2020
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Through amendment order passed under section 122 (1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001; the
Company's return of total income for Tax Year 2018 was amended and taxable income was assessed
at Rs. 60,029,594 against declared income of Rs. 56,032,053 before Workers Welfare Fund, however
no tax liability emerged due to availability of income tax refunds. The Company preferred an
appeal filed on March 2020 before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals - 1), Karachi. Order
against this appeal is yet to be issued. The Company's management and legal advisor feel that
there are strong grounds to defend the Company's stance and the liability will not materialize,
hence, no adjustment has been made in these financial statements.

Name of the court, agency or authority:

- Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-1)

Principal parties

- Karam Ceramics Limited VS Federal Board of Revenue.

VS

Federal Board of Revenue

Date instituted

- March 2020

Income Tax Appeal has been filed before the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals-II), Karachi
[CIR (A)] against the order passed by the Deputy Commissioner Inland of Revenue, (Audit-1I),
unit-VII, Range-D-II, Zone-1V, Large Taxpayer Office, Karachi, u/s 122(1) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 dated 21-10-2020 for the Tax Year 2019, which is pending.

Name of the court, agency or authority:

- Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-II)

Principal parties

- Karam Ceramics Limited VS Federal Board of Revenue.

Date instituted

- October 2020

Further, C.P NO. D-6168 of 2014, ITRA 174 of 2012 & II'RA 554 of 2009 are pending before Honorable
High Court of Sindh.

Commitments

Letters of credit other than for capital expenditure amount to Rs.27,817,125 (2021: Rs.63,098,618).

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
REVENUE
Gross local sales 1,003,455,446 1,374,817,016
Less: Sales tax (185,373,015) (248,171,948)

818,082,431 1,126,645,068
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Note 2022 2021
26. COSTOFSALES - Rupees -----
Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 352,330,262 246,106,118
Purchases 342,390,839 387,481,827
Closing stock (350,356,931) (352,330,262)
344,364,170 281,257,683
Manufacturing expenses
Fuel, power and water 346,857,927 573,672,264
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1 117,641,969 115,929,944
Stores and spare parts consumed 8,019,655 3,909,081
Packing material consumed 50,353,866 43,510,467
Repairs and maintenance 29,298,857 40,546,429
Depreciation 5.1 94,806,040 92,934,729
Director's remuneration 3,900,000 3,900,000
Insurance 3,936,824 3,636,203
Vehicles running and maintenance 299,896 250,481
Others 26.2 13,902,038 17,621,132
669,017,072 895,910,730
Opening work in process 11,698,018 11,443,820
Closing work in process 9 (3,820,925) (11,698,018)
Cost of goods manufactured 1,021,258,335 1,176,914,215
Opening stock of finish goods 247,707,966 161,697,294
Closing stock of finished goods 9 (252,841,360) (247,707 ,966)
1,016,124,940 1,090,903,543
26.1 This includes Rs. 13,220,259 (2021: Rs. (9,310,045) in respect of staff retirement benefits
26.2  Expense in respect of short term leases of generator amounted to Rs. 11,308,238 (2021: Rs. 14,917,391).
27. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 27.1 6,412,136 5,240,321
Freight charges 112,292 2,541,082
Fees and subscription 2,460,196 -
Rent, rates and taxes 1,207,875 120,965
Fuel, power and water 228,913 410,435
Postage, telegraph and telephone charges 120,980 206,481
Printing and stationery 9,764 27,072
Vehicles running and maintenance 419,480 508,008
Repairs and maintenance 464,048 416,836
Travelling and conveyance 40,610 100,911
Entertainment 217,777 390,262
Advertisement expenses 280,350 329,940
Insurance 24,952 155,956
Depreciation 5.1 567,531 556,355
12,566,904 11,004,624
27.1  This includes Rs. 290,555 (2021: Rs. (204,626) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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28.1

29.

29.1

29.2

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
Director's remuneration

Fees and subscription

Rent, rates and taxes

Fuel, power and water

Postage, telegraph and telephone charges
Printing and stationery

Vehicles running and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Entertainment

Legal and professional charges
Insurance

Depreciation

This includes Rs.1,016,942 (2021: Rs. (716,191) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

OTHER EXPENSES

Auditor's remuneration

Donations

Auditor's remuneration

Audit services
Audit fee

Fee for review of half yearly financial information

Out of pocket expenses

Note 2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
28.1 15,374,665 11,976,686
3,900,000 3,900,000
1,123,665 519,226
777,068 2,212,003
1,401,713 1,293,821
468,642 328,476
147,767 166,516
179,297 146,174
1,425,677 1,210,370
161,391 165,264
15,675 2,000
1,059,859 314,680
336,813 608,163
5.1 610,011 597,944
26,982,243 23,441,323
29.1 889,130 802,800
29.2 100,000 35,000
989,130 837,800
754,380 685,800
59,400 54,000
75,350 63,000
889,130 802,800

None of the Directors or their spouse have any interest in the donees.




30.

31.

32.

OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on deposit Account

Liabiities no longer payable

Present value adjustment on modification
of interest free loan from directors

Amortisation of government grant

Income from non-financial assets

Exchange gain
Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:

Short term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Refinance scheme
Term Finance

Interest on directors' loan

Bank charges

Interest on workers' profit participation fund
Exchange loss

TAXATION

Current
Deferred
Prior year

Profit before taxation
Tax at the applicable rate of 29%

Tax effect of permanent differences
Others

L IMITED
WALL TILES - FLOOR TILES
2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
508,406 640
- 31,949,821
- 42,870,423
- 4,697,793
508,406 79,518,677
40,817,244 531,360
41,325,650 80,050,037
40,581,017 27,929,139
62,910 121,344
828,494 6,008,975
4,980,275 11,368,922
46,452,696 45,428,380
10,233,261 40,121,733
1,145,705 2,457,780
- 63,488
2,636,599 238,360
60,468,261 88,309,741
10,226,030 16,899,676
(16,189,745) (66,330,927)
(5,963,714) (49,431,251)
(257,723,397) (7,801,926)
74,739,785 2,262,558
2,967,646 (9,059,357)
(84,587,489) (42,634,452)
(6,880,058) (49,431,251)
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33.1

34.

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----

LOSS / EARNINGS PER SHARE -

BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit after taxation attributable to

ordinary shareholders (251,759,683) 41,629,325
Weighted average number of shares 14,548,676 14,548,676
(Loss) / Earnings per share (Rupees) - Basic and diluted (17.30) 2.86

There is no dilutive effect on the basic profit per share of the Company.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year, in
addition to remuneration of chief executive and directors whose details have been
separately disclosed in note 35.

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
Related party Relationship Nature of transactions
Kulsoom Sohaila ~ Associated undertaking  Rent expenses - 1,870,753
Associates

Directors Associated persons Loan (paid) /

received - net 252,106,726 59,900,000
Directors Associated persons Notional interest

on loan 10,233,261 11,631,260
Directors Associated persons Remuneration and

allowances 7,800,000 7,800,000
Directors Associated persons Sale of vehicle 2,700,000 -
Directors Associated persons Sale of vehicle 5,500,000 -
Directors Associated persons Sale of vehicle 2,700,000 -
Directors Associated persons Sale of vehicle 2,000,000 -

The related party status of outstanding balances is included in long term financing from
directors, markup accrued on short term borrowings from directors and accrued expenses.




35.

35.1

35.2

36.

36.1

37.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements of the year for remuneration
including all benefits to chief executive and director of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Director Total
2022 | 2021 2022 | 2021 2022 | 2021

Managerial remuneration
and allowances 2,516,129 2,516,129 2516129  2516,129 5,032,258 5,032,258
House rent 1,132,258 1,132,258 1,132,258 1,132,258 2,264,516 2,264,516
Utilities 251,613 251,613 251,613 251,613 503,226 503,226
Bonus - - - - - -

3,900,000 3,900,000 3,900,000 3,900,000 7,800,000 7,800,000
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 2 2

The Chief Executive and Director of the Company are also provided with free use of
Company maintained cars in accordance with their terms of employment.

No remuneration has been paid in current and preceding year to non-executive directors
of the Company.

2022 2021

Square Meters
PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Installed Capacity 6,480,000 6,480,000
Actual Production 1,392,304 2,357,994

Difference is due to the current supply/demand situation in the market.

2022 2021
Number
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total employees of the Company at the year end 242 329
Average employees of the Company at the year end 290 333
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39.

40.

40.1

2022 2021
————— Rupees -----
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 4,761,561 15,240,576
Short term borrowings from banks - secured (280,859,429) (208,536,561)
(276,097,868) (193,295,985)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
FINANCIAL ASSETS
At amortized cost
Long term deposits 898,453 897,038
Trade debts 6,559,905 34,942,121
Loans to employees 387,427 73,100
Short term deposits and other receivables 27,202 35,249
Bank balances 4,723,793 15,145,894
12,596,780 51,093,402
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At amortized cost
Long term financing 650,933,902 521,523,748
Post employment benefits 90,330,501 83,266,939
Lease liabilities 419,473 803,166
Trade and other liabilities 68,150,333 95,018,207
Accrued markup on loans 38,001,226 35,174,733
Short term borrowings 314,809,771 336,907,805
Unclaimed dividend 513,191 513,191
Dividend payable 3,148,405 6,225,120
1,166,306,802 1,079,432,909

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk, other market price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides
principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas such
as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's overall risk management procedures, to minimize the potential adverse
effects of financial market on the Company's performance, are as follows:




(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency, interest rate, commodity price
and equity price that will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency
risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables
that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to United States Dollar (USD) and Euro (EUR). Currently,
the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable
to foreign entities and foreign currency bank balances.

At June 30, 2022, if the Rupee had weakened / strengthen by 5% against the US
dollar and Euro with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been Rs. 1,397,302 (2021: Rs. 328,960) lower / higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US dollar and Euro-denominated
financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

As the Company has no significant floating interest rate assets, the Company's
income is substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's interest rate risk arises from short term borrowings and long term
financings. These financing, issued at variable rates, expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic
basis taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and
alternative financing.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the reporting date fluctuate by 10% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been Rs. 35,179,098
(2021: Rs. 76,009,623) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
of liabilities outstanding at the reporting date are outstanding for the entire year.

Other market price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
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The Company is not exposed to any market price risk.
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Carrying
amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure.

Credit risk of the Company arises from deposits with banks, long term deposits,
short term deposits, trade receivables and other receivables. The management
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly
monitored. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties
with a strong credit rating are accepted.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to
historical performance of such assets and available external credit ratings, if any.
Carrying values of financial assets exposed to credit risk, which are neither past due
nor impaired are as under:

2022 2021
----- Rupees -----
Long term deposits 898,453 897,038
Trade debts 6,559,905 34,942,121
Loans to employees 387,427 73,100
Short term deposits 87,202 35,249
Bank balances 4,761,561 15,240,576
12,694,548 51,188,084
The aging of receivables as at reporting date is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired - 21,603,273
Past due but not impaired
1-30 days 4,823,148 2,586,941
31-90 days 1,736,757 1,994,219
More than 90 days - 8,757,687
6,559,905 34,942,120

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with
reasonably high credit ratings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major
concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of counter
parties and trade receivables are subject to specific credit ceilings based on customer
credit history.

The management estimates the recoverability of trade receivables on the basis of
financial position and past history of its customers based on the objective evidence
that it shall not receive the amount due from the particular customer. The provision
is written off by the Company when it expects that it cannot recover the balance
due. Any subsequent repayments in relation to amounts written off are credited
directly to the statement of profit or loss.




The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information
about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2022 2021
Short term  Longterm Rating Agency -~ Rupees -----

Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 2,132,901 2,136,240
Muslim commercial Bank Al+ AAA PACRA 790,057 190,657
Habib Metropoliton Bank Al+ AA+ PACRA 964,652 2,662,353
JS Bank Ltd Al+ AA- PACRA 67,450 3,528,214
Alfalah Bank Ltd. Al+ AA+ PACRA 56,242 875,310
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 309,125 758,425
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 2,068 2,068
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 77,032 1,323,326
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 324,265 3,669,302

4,723,793 15,145,895

() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company
ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected cash outflows during
its operating cycle, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such
as natural disasters. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity reserve
(comprising undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents) on the
basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the Company's liquidity management
policy involves projecting cash flows in each quarter and considering the level of
liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities and maintaining debt financing plans.
The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date, to the contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows and also include the impact of estimated future interest payments.
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Carrying Contractual Within one After one
Description amount cash flows year year
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2022:

Long term financing 650,933,902 640,700,641 33,821,400 617,112,502
Post employment benefits 90,330,501 90,330,501 - 90,330,501
Lease liabilities 419,473 419,473 419,473 -

Trade and other payables
[trade creditors and

accrued expenses] 68,150,333 68,150,333 - 68,150,333
Short term borrowings 314,809,771 314,809,771 - 314,809,771
Markup accrued on loans 38,001,226 38,001,226 - 38,001,226
Unclaimed dividend 513,191 513,191 - 513,191
Dividend payable 3,148,405 3,148,405 - 3,148,405

1,166,306,802 1,156,073,541 34,240,873 1,132,065,929
Carrying Contractual Within one After one
Description amount year year
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2021:

Long term financing 521,523,748 513,004,738 121,680,310 399,843,438
Post employment benefits 83,266,939 83,266,939 - 83,266,939
Lease liabilities 803,166 803,166 383,693 419,473

Trade and other payables
[trade creditors and

accrued expenses] 95,018,207 95,018,207 - 95,018,207
Short term borrowings 336,907,805 336,907,805 - 336,907,805
Markup accrued on loans 35,174,733 35,174,733 - 35,174,733
Unclaimed dividend 513,191 513,191 - 513,191
Dividend payable 6,225,120 6,225,120 - 6,225,120

1,079,432,909 1,070,913,899 122,064,003 957,368,906

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined
on the basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at the reporting date. The rates
of interest / mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements.

(d) Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,

between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently,
differences may arise between the carrying value and the fair value estimates.
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Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices
prevailing on the reporting date. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective
evidence at each reporting date. The carrying values of financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair values.

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Company's ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.
The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of
working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of
finance to minimise risk.
2022 2021
----- Rupees -----
Total borrowings 965,743,673 858,431,553
Cash and bank (4,761,561) (15,240,576)
Net debt 960,982,112 843,190,977
Equity 542,922,707 882,656,835
Total capital 1,503,904,819 1,725,847,812
Debt to capital ratio 64% 49%
42, RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
As at June 30, Non-cash As at June 30,
2021 changes Cash Flows 2022
Rupees
Long term financing 521,523,745 13,393,156 116,017,000 650,933,902
Lease liabilities 803,166 - (383,611) 419,473
Short term borrowings 336,907,805 - (22,098,034) 314,809,771
859,234,716 13,393,156 93,535,355 966,163,146
43. IMPACT OF COVID-19

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only
endangered human lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. On March
20, 2020, the Government of the Sindh announced a temporary lock down as a measure
to reduce the spread of the COVID-19. Complying with the lockdown, the Company
temporarily suspended its operations from March 23, 2020. In the Company’s case, the
lockdown was subsequently relaxed from end of May, 2020.
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After implementing all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure
safety of employees, the Company henceforth resumed its operations and has taken all
necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation of its business in order to
maintain business performance despite slowed down economic activity. The lockdown
has caused disruptions in supply chain including supply to the customers resulting in
a decline in sales. However, after the lockdown, there's been a steady increase in the
overall economic activity due to increase in construction projects as a result of relief
packages announced by the Government of Pakistan. Accordingly, the company forecasts
an increase in turnover of the next reporting period which also goes on to support the
going-concern assumption of the Company accompanied with positive cashflows due
to maturity dates of various financing activities approaching in the next two reporting
periods which will significantly reduce future finance cost.

According to management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the
effects of COVID-19 in these financial statements.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered
necessary, for the purposes of comparison and to reflect the substance of the transactions.

GENERAL

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 22 October, 2022 by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

s

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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L!MITED .
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Shalje(;; (:)lgers Fr orI:Ila ving SharesTO Shares Held Percentage

169 1 100 1405 0.0097

78 101 500 35047 0.2409

19 501 1000 15928 0.1095

22 1001 5000 58635 0.4030

8 5001 10000 61330 0.4216

1 10001 15000 10500 0.0722

1 15001 20000 16500 0.1134

1 25001 30000 27244 0.1873

1 30001 35000 32751 0.2251

1 215001 220000 219500 1.5087

1 310001 315000 312360 2.1470

1 440001 445000 444021 3.0520

1 525001 530000 526424 3.6184

1 730001 735000 732920 5.0377

3 735001 740000 2207760 15.1750

3 980001 985000 2942678 20.2264

1 3320001 3325000 3320214 22.8214

1 3580001 3585000 3583459 24.6308

313 Company Total 14548676 100.0000
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CATEGORY OF SHARE HOLDERS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Folio No Name Code  Balance Held Percentage
000000000831  MISS ALIZA KASSIM 001 981226 6.7444
000000000838  MISS ALISHBA IRSHAD ALI 001 981226 6.7444
000000000861  MISS ANUSHKA KASSIM 001 980226 6.7376
003277064848 IRSHAD ALI SHABAN ALI KASSIM 001 3320214 22.8214
003277064857 MUNAWAR ALI KASSIM 001 3583459 24.6308
003277064868  ALIZA KASSIM 001 27244 0.1873
003277072006 MANEEZA KASSIM 001 3000 0.0206
003277086457 MARIAM SHABAN ALI 001 526424 3.6184
003889000028 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 004 202 0.0014
007393000024 SUMMIT BANK LIMITED 004 312360 2.1470
000000000773  GULF INSURANCE COMPANY LTD. 005 1500 0.0103
003277078335 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN

EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 010 32751 0.2251
003277082127 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN

EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 010 1149 0.0079
006445000028 DARSON SECURITIES LIMITED 010 1 0.0000
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Particulars No. of Folio Balance Share Percentage
DIRECTORS, CEO & CHILDREN 8 10403019 71.5049
BANKS, DFI & NBFI 2 312562 2.1484
INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 1500 0.0103
GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 294 3040274 20.8973
GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 5 757420 5.2061
OTHERS 3 33901 0.2330
Company Total 313 14548676 100.0000
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Dear Shareholder(s) Dated:
MANDATORY PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

In pursuance of Section 242 of the recently promulgated Companies Act, 2017, it is now mandatory for all
listed companies to pay dividend only by way of electronic mode, directly into the bank accounts of entitled
shareholders.

Keeping in view the same, all cash dividend, if declared by the Company kin future will be directly transferred
in bank account, In order to enable us to follow the directives of the regulators in regard to payment of
divided only through electronic mode, you are requested to please provide/ update your bank account details
in below mentioned format. . L

1. T hereby authorize Karam Ceramics Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if
any, in the below mentioned bank account.

Bank Account Details of Transfer for Cash Dividend

*( Mandatory to provide)

i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of Company

Name of Share holder

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/c No.

CNIC No*

Passport No ,( in case of foreign
Shareholder )**

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

ii) Shareholder’s Bank detail

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number IBAN) PK
Mandatory

Bank's Name

Branch Name And Address

2. Itis stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, that I will intimate the changes in the above
mentioned information to the above addresses as soon as these occur.

(signature of shareholder)

KINDLY NOTE: COMPANY MAY WITHHOLD THE PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND OF A MEMBER WHERE
THE MEMBER HAS NOT PROVIDED THE COMPLETE INFORMATION OR DOCUMENTS AS
SPECIFIED,

The shareholders who hold share in Central Depository Company are requested to submit the above mentioned
dividend mandate form after duly filed in to their participants/ investor account services of the central
depository company limited.

The shareholder who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above-mentioned dividend
mandate form after duly filled in to Company's registrar office, as mentioned below:

M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited
Plot No0.32-C, Jami Commercial Street2,
D.H.A Phase-VII, Karachi-75500

For any query, you may please contact on Tel # 021-111-000-322 or email at sfc@thk.com.pk
Thanking you.

Manzoor Ali Natha
(Company Secretary)
Karam Ceramics Limited

Note : This is a computer generated letter and does not require signature.
*Please attach attested photocopy of CNIC
** please attach attested photocopy of the Passport
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FORM OF PROXY

I / We
of
being a member of KARAM CERAMICS LIMITED and holder of

ordinary shares as per Registered Folio No.

hereby appoint Mr.

of of failing him
Mr.
of who is also

a member of KARAM CERAMICS LIMITED vide Registered Folio No.as my proxy to vote
for and on my behalf at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Saturday, November 26, 2022 at 3:00 pm Company's Registered Office situated at A-31, SM.C.H.S,,

Karachi.

WITNESS:
(1) Signature

Name

Address

NIC or Passport No.
Signature on
Rupees Five

Revenue Stamp

2) Signature

(Signature should agree with the specimen
Name Signature registered with the company)

Address

NIC or Passport No.

Dated

Important:
This form of proxy, duly completed must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office
A-31,5.M.C.H.S., Karachi not less than 48 hours before the meeting .

CDC Shareholder and their Proxied must attached either an attested photocopy of their
Computerized National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy from.
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